
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.

Please ask for:
Marie Lowe

* Reporting to Cabinet

7 January 2019

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL to be held on Wednesday 16 January 2019 at 7.30 pm in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE.

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTIONS 

To note any substitution of Panel Members in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules 19 – 22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 10 December 
2018 (previously circulated). 

4.  ACTIONS UPDATE (Pages 5 - 6)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
which lists the actions from previous meetings and their current status.

5.  NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 14 

Public Document Pack



6.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda. 

7.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS 

Up to fifteen minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions.

8.  HOUSING OPERATIONS TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME UPDATE (Pages 
7 - 24)

Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) with an update on 
the progress of the Housing Operations Transformation Programme and sets out 
some of the key changes and achievements delivered since the rollout of the 
Programme in June 2018.

9.  PRESENTATION ON THE INDEPENDENT LIVING SERVICE 

Presentation giving an overview of the Independent Living Service provided by the 
Council, which includes the buses, scheme management, control centre and shop 
mobility.

10.  CHANGES TO HOUSING RENT STATEMENT PRODUCTION (Pages 25 - 30)

Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) provides an overview 
of the current process regarding the standard issue of rent statements and to seek 
views on a new approach to how the Council’s new Housing Income Team 
generate and mail out rent statements to Council tenants.

11.  TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION PROVISION UPDATE (Pages 31 - 38)

Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) outlines the position 
in relation to the use of temporary accommodation for homeless families; the use 
of bed and breakfast accommodation in the Borough and the measures the 
Council are taking to address the current and future demand.

12.  QUEENSWAY HOUSE UPDATE 

Verbal report updating the Panel on Queensway House.

13.  WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19 (Pages 39 - 40)

The pro-forma which sets out the Panel’s work programme has been updated 
since the last meeting to enable forward planning of items to be considered to take 
place. 

14.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 



15.  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Panel is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 16 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Paragraph 4 (consultations or negotiations relating to 
labour relations) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended). 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

PART II

16.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIRMAN 

Circulation: Councillors J.Boulton (Chairman)
N.Pace (Vice-Chairman)
M.Birleson
M.Cook
S.Glick
M.Holloway

T.Jackson-Mynott
T.Kingsbury
R.Lass
H.Quenet
F.Thomson

Co-opted Members:-
Tenants’ Panel Representatives

R.Read and B.Rhodes

Independent Representatives

R.Paris  

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Marie Lowe, 
Governance Services on 01707 357443 or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Main author: Marie Lowe

Executive Member: Cllr Fiona Thomson
Not Ward Specific

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET HOUSING PANEL – 16 JANUARY 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE)

ACTIONS STATUS REPORT

1 Executive Summary

In order to ensure that actions identified at meetings are completed, this report lists the 
actions from the meeting of the Cabinet Housing Panel on 10 December 2018, those 
responsible for completing each action and their current status.

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 That Members note the status of actions which were identified at the 10 December 
2018 meeting of the Committee.

Minute Action Responsible
Status/
Date Completed

17. Affordable Housing Delivery - 
Review Of Strategic Approach 
– update on the Housing 
Company

Corporate Director 
(Housing and 
Communities)

An update report to be 
brought to the March 
2019 meeting
 

20. Housing Operations 
Transformation Programme 
Update

Head of Housing 
Operations

An update report on the 
agenda for this meeting

51. Performance Report For 
Housing Period Quarter 2 
2018-19

Head of Community 
and Housing 
Strategy

Information to be 
supplied to the Panel on 
Private Housing 
Inspections

52. Rent Arrears Policy - Council 
Tenants Head of Housing 

Operations
Cabinet to consider the 
adoption of the Policy on 
8 January 2019

53. Former Tenant Arrears Policy: Head of Housing 
Operations

Total outstanding housing 
tenancy former tenant 
arrears (FTA) broken 
down by debt range be 
provided to Members.

Cabinet to consider the 
adoption of the Policy on 
8 January 2019

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Part I
Main author: Stuart Pearson 
Executive Member: Nick Pace

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET HOUSING PANEL – 16 JANUARY 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES)

HOUSING OPERATIONS TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME UPDATE

1 Executive Summary

1.1 This report provides the Cabinet Housing Panel with an update on the progress 
of the Housing Operations Transformation Programme (the Programme). 

1.2 The aim of the programme was to modernise the housing service so that 
customers can benefit from a more flexible, community-facing service, making 
better use of the council’s resources.  

1.3 New team structures across all teams have been implemented and nearing full 
compliment.  

1.4 An enhanced suite of performance metrics has been developed across all 
teams. 

1.5 Now the staffing aspect of the programme is virtually complete, the next steps 
will be to continue to progress the operational and cultural changes and 
improvements to allow the vision of the Programme to be delivered successfully 
in the long term.  

1.6 Teams are continuing to develop full scale service reviews, with some already 
demonstrating successes in progressing and delivering outcomes as a direct 
result of actions identified following transformation. These successes will 
contribute to the overall success of the Programme both for the council, but 
more importantly for the residents.

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 It is recommended that Members note the contents of this report.

3 Explanation

3.1 Modernisation of the service was required to improve the customer experience, 
provide more services within the community and deliver a more accessible 
service, including enabling customers with a simple enquiry to have a much 
smoother, ‘first time fix’ transaction. The aim has also been to improve the use 
of technology and generally get more from the council’s resources. 

3.2 The need to deliver efficiencies in operational processes was paramount with a 
more modern approach to service delivery.

3.3 Some Housing Operations services were unaffected by the changes. These are 
the Control Centre, Community Buses, Shop Mobility and the Jim McDonald 
Centre.

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



- 2 -

3.4 Set out below are some of the key changes and achievements delivered since 
the rollout of the Programme in June 2018.

Structures / Staffing

3.5 New team structures across all teams is in place with all posts associated with 
the Programme soon to be at full complement following successful recruitment. 

3.6 Appendix 1 shows the current structure charts as at December 2018.

Performance Management

3.7 An enhanced suite of performance metrics has been developed across all 
teams with overarching operational efficiency metrics (Business Excellence) 
also included. These are monitored on a monthly basis at Operational 
Management Team (OMT) Performance Clinics. A breakdown of the suite of 
metrics is shown at Appendix 2.

3.8 A modern approach to presenting the performance metrics is being worked on 
through Clearview (Performance and Project Management Portal) to create 
automation where possible.  

Service Delivery Feedback

3.9 A mystery shopping exercise has been carried out, the findings currently being 
collated and scheduled to be analysed early 2019. The findings will be used to 
develop an action / improvement plan. 

3.10 Resident focus groups will be set up to give residents’ opportunities to focus on 
improving specific services and contribute to the shaping of services going 
forward. 

Service Reviews

3.11 With new teams and initial service delivery changes now bedded in, teams are 
working on developing and finalising full scale service reviews, with some 
already demonstrating successes in progressing and delivering outcomes as a 
direct result of actions identified following transformation. 

3.12 Gap analysis has been carried out across some services, with others to follow. 
Where possible the analysis has been compared against sector standards such 
as RESPECT ASB Charter, Tenant Participation (TPAS) and Housing Quality 
Network (HQN).

3.13 Gap analysis allows us to identify service development opportunities to prioritise 
service improvement to achieve the required standard of good practice. This will 
allow us to deliver our longer term objectives of achieving accreditation for 
delivering excellence and building on the council’s recent successes with 
winning awards and wider sector recognition. 

Successes So Far

3.14 There have been a number of service improvements and new initiatives 
implemented already, some of which are stated below. 

Page 8



- 3 -

3.15 A number of new operational documents have been completed (or nearing 
completion). These include:

 Rent and Former Tenant Arrears Policies
 Anti-Social Behaviour and Domestic Abuse Policies
 Decoration Allowance Scheme
 Leaseholder Booklet
 Mutual Exchange Action Plan
 Right to Buy Scheme

3.16 In addition, new customer leaflets have been designed and printed creating 
easily accessible information on key services.

3.17 A new ‘Neighbourhood Improvement Bid’ scheme has been implemented. This 
new initiative has a set budget to support ideas to improve the community and 
neighbourhood environment for our tenants and leaseholders. This new 
scheme encourages residents and our Neighbourhood Officers to work together 
to make changes to the local neighbourhood to improve the area.

3.18 The use of new technology is an opportunity to manage services more 
efficiently, providing demonstrable benefits for users as well as managing 
officers. One of the opportunities being piloted is the use of the Noise App, an 
application that enables complainants to make recordings of alleged noise 
nuisance at the point it happens. 

3.19 A new neighbourhood inspection programme is nearing development 
completion with the team finalising the details of a new neighbourhood 
standard, inspection form and programme, and recruitment of ‘Neighbourhood 
Champions’ across our housing stock. This will demonstrate positive 
engagement to deliver a more proactive neighbourhood management 
approach, focused on improving the standards of the neighbourhoods and 
communities where our residents live.

3.20 Following the implementation of the new Income Team and a review of the 
associated processes with income recover, officers now do DIY possession 
cases which delivers increased capacity for the council’s Legal Services Team. 
No longer do a council legal representative and an Income Officer both attend 
court at the same time. In addition to efficiency and capacity, this change also 
satisfies one of the drivers for delivering the Programme, ownership and 
accountability in service delivery. The feedback has been really positive from 
officers who feel empowered to manage their own work and to make decisions, 
albeit within a set policy and process. 

3.21 A review of how calls are managed between Control Centre and Scheme Co-
ordinators identified a high volume of waste/nuisance calls which were 
impacting the capacity of the Co-ordinators managing the sheltered housing 
schemes. The changes implemented have had a positive impact on the ability 
of the Co-ordinators to focus on priority tasks and offer more support to 
residents who actually require it.

3.22 The changes already delivered are really positive and albeit small steps on a 
longer journey, they are starting to make a difference to the services delivered 
to council tenants and leaseholders. 

Page 9



- 4 -

Looking Forward

3.23 Comprehensive and fluid operational service review plans will continue to be 
developed with key projects prioritised over the next 12 months, with longer 
term projects deliverable over the next two years.

3.24 New policies, procedures and resident communication will continue to be 
developed to increase the suite of easily accessible information for customers. 

3.25 Enhancements to information technology will continue to be explored, 
particularly where the investment will deliver improvements in accessibility for 
customers, as well as giving staff the best tools to do their job.

3.26 We will be looking to seek service excellence recognition through being 
successful in submissions for accreditation and awards. We plan to be in 
position to make at least two submissions for accreditation during 2019/20.

3.27 Monitoring of the finalised suite of performance metrics will happen monthly, in 
some cases weekly with data used to drive service improvement and 
enhancement.

3.28 We will be reviewing the customer satisfaction framework across Housing 
Operations and more widely across Housing and Communities which will give 
us an insight as to how satisfied our customers are with specific services, but 
also with the council as a landlord overall.

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 None directly arising from this report.

5 Financial Implication(s)

5.1 None directly arising from this report.

6 Risk Management Implications

6.1 None directly arising from this report.

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s)

7.1 None directly arising from this report.

8 Procurement Implication(s)

8.1 None directly arising from this report.

9 Climate Change Implications

9.1 None directly arising from this report.

10 Communications Plan

10.1 Communication of the service changes across Housing Operations have been 
published through a designated leaflet mail out to all council tenants and 
leaseholders. Appendix 3 shows a copy of the leaflet that was sent out.

Page 10



- 5 -

10.2 This leaflet contains details of the new teams, service summary and team 
contact details. The leaflet was sent out in September 2018.

11 Link to Corporate Priorities

11.1 The subject of this report is linked to 3 of the 5 Council Corporate Priorities: 

1) Our Community

2) Our Housing

3) Our Council

12 Equality and Diversity

12.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies.

12.2 An EqIA was completed as part of the original service change proposal.

Name of author Stuart Pearson 
Title Head of Housing Operations
Date 08 January 2019

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Neighbourhood and Enforcement Manager

 

Neighbourhood Team Leader 

 

Neighbourhood Team Leader 

 

Neighbourhood Officer

 

Neighbourhood Officer 

 

Neighbourhood Officer

 

Neighbourhood and 
Tenancy Enforcement

Campus East

Community Engagement Officer

 

Resident Involvement Officer

 

ASB Officer

 

ASB Officer

 

Tenancy Support Officer

 

ASB Team Leader

 

Appendix 1

Neighbourhood Officer

 

Neighbourhood Assistant

 

ASB Co-ordinator 

 

ASB Officer

 

Neighbourhood Assistant

 

Neighbourhood Assistant

 

Neighbourhood Officer

 

Caretaker

 

Neighbourhood Officer

 

Tenancy Support Officer

 

Neighbourhood Officer 

 

Neighbourhood Officer 

 

Neighbourhood Officer 

 

Neighbourhood Officer 

 

P
age 13



Income and Home Ownership Manager

 

Income Team Leader

 

Income Officer 

 

Home Ownership Officer

 

Income and Home 
Ownership (Housing)

White Lion House

Home Ownership Officer

 

Housing Transactions Officer

 

Housing Accounts Assistant

 

Home Ownership and Rents Team Leader

 

Sundry Debt and Arrears Officer

 

Appendix 1

Income Officer

 

Income Officer

 

Income Officer

 

Income Officer

 

Income Officer

 

Income Officer

 

Income Officer

 

Home Ownership Officer 

 

Home Ownership Officer

 

Housing Transactions Officer

 

Receptionist

 

Apprentice

 

Income Officer

 

P
age 14



Business Excellence Manager

 

Housing IT Systems Developer

 

Performance and Insight Team Leader

 

Housing Systems Administrator

 
Performance and Quality Officer

 

Apprentice (Housing)

 

Business Excellence 
Campus East

Digital Communications Officer

 

Appendix 1

P
age 15



Independent Living Service Manager

 

Independent Living Team Leader

 

Independent Living Team Leader

 

Control Centre Team Leader

 

Control Centre Operators x 12

 

Community Transport Officer

 

Shop Mobility

 

Scheme Co-ordinators x 5

 

Scheme Co-ordinators x 7

 

Independent Living Team Leader

 

Mobile Wardens x 8

 

Independent Living Assistant

 

Mobile Scheme Co-ordinators x 2

 

Independent Living
Campus East

Appendix 1

Scheme Co-ordinators x 6

 

Scheme Co-ordinators x 4

 

Decant Officer

 

Community Bus Drivers x 9

 

P
age 16



Community Centre Manager

 

Duty Supervisor

 

General Assistant

 

Jim McDonald Centre 

General Assistant

 

Casual

 

Casual

 

Kitchen Manager

 

Appendix 1

Caretaker

 

General Assistant

 

General Assistant

 

General Assistant

 

Casual

 

Casual

 

Casual

 

General Assistant

 

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

Area Period KPI

Action plan 

18/19 Target Tolerance

Monthly % of rental income lost due to vacant dwellings YTD Yes 0.80% 0.90%

Monthly Average void relet time (days) for major or policy voids 45 50

Monthly Number of council housing stock vacant due to policy voids 40 45

Monthly % of dwellings with a valid gas safety certificate Yes 100% 99.85%

Quarterly

Properties recovered as a result of tenancy fraud (stepped 

quarterly) 10 8

Quarterly % Estates achieving standard (RAG) 80.00% 60.00%

Monthly Total number of new ASB cases per period TBA TBA

Quarterly % of current ASB cases open for more than 3 months 30.00% 35.00%

Quarterly

% of customers satisfied with the way in which their ASB case 

was handled 90.00% 85.00%

Quarterly

Total number of customers engaged with shaping housing 

services (stepped quarterly) 250 225

Quarterly

Total number of customers involved in activities (stepped 

quarterly) 400 375

Quarterly Number of scrutiny of services completed (stepped quarterly) 3 2

Monthly

Average void property re-let time for standard general needs 

council homes in days Yes 18 20

Monthly

Average void relet time (days) for 'Normal' voids - Sheltered 

Housing' 25 27

Monthly

Average void time (days) for 'Normal voids' for contractor 

performance (period between void start date and keys returned 

from contractor date) 12 15

Monthly

Average void time (days) for 'Normal voids' for available for 

letting (period between keys returned from contractor date 

tenancy commencement date) 3 5

Monthly

Number of evictions (due to tenancy management) as % of 

homes in management (GN) 0.10% 0.05%

Quarterly

Number of training certifications achieved by residents across 

the borough 100 90

Monthly

Average time for mobile warden to respond to an Emergency 

Alarm call (minutes) Yes 12.0 13.0

Monthly Average time for a control centre call response (seconds) 15 16

Monthly % Calls answered in 60 seconds 97.0% 95.0%

Monthly Number of calls received into the Control Centre (per month) 10500 10000

Quarterly % of customer satisfaction with Sheltered Scheme services 97.0% 95.0%
Annually % of customer satisfaction with lifeline services 98.0% 90.0%

2018/2019

Neighbourhood and Enforcement

Independent Living

LIST OF 2018/19 KPI's

Page 19



Monthly

% of stage one complaints responded to within target (Housing 

Operations) 95% 93%

Quarterly

% of customers satisfied with how their complaint was handled 

(Housing Operations) 70% 65%

Quarterly

% of stage 1 complaints closed at task 3 - (15 working days) 

deadline 95.0% 90.0%

Quarterly

% of Plan actions completed within target - Green, Amber, Grey 

(stepped quarterly) 80.0% 75.0%

Quarterly

% of tenants satisfied overall with services provided (perception 

STAR) 85% 80%

Quarterly

% of leaseholders satisfied overall with services provided 

(perception STAR) 65% 60%

Monthly Dashboard - % of calls fixed first time (across all Hsing Ops) 85% 80%

Monthly Dashboard - % of calls fixed first time (per service team) 85% 80%

Monthly

Dashboard - % of cases closed within 3 working days (across all 

Housing operations)  including those active over 3 days at period 

end 95% 90%

Monthly

% of Member Enquiries acknowledged (Task 1) completed 

within target (Housing Operations) 95% 93%

Monthly

% of Member Enquiries responded (Task 2) within target 

(Housing Operations) 95% 93%

Quarterly % of Return to Work meetings completed in target 90% 85%

Annually % increase in the number of See My Data accounts 10% 8%

Monthly

Current tenant rent arrears as a % of the total ARD (General 

Needs) Yes 1.80% 1.90%

Quarterly U&O Arrears and case total (monetary value) £50k £60k

Quarterly Number of active U&O accounts 10 15

Monthly

Number of evictions (due to rent arrears) as % of homes in 

management (GN) Yes

0.025%pm 

/0.3%pa

0.033%pm / 

0.4%pa

Monthly % of arrears due to universal credit cases (ARD Cases Only) 10% 12%

Monthly Number of universal credit cases (any debit) 750 800

Quarterly % of Annual Service Charge Recovered for leasehold 90.00% 85.00%

Monthly

% of Leaseholders Service charge arrears outstanding as a total 

annual charge debit 10.00% 11.50%

Quarterly % of Major Works Charges Recovered for leasehold TBC TBC

Monthly

% of Leaseholders Major works arrears outstanding as a total 

annual charge debit TBC TBC

Monthly % of total rent collected year to date (GN) 100.00% 99.50%

Monthly Number of live active RTB applications at the point in time. 90 100

Monthly Number of completed RTB sales 40 35

Quarterly % of RTB applications assessed within statutory period (4 weeks) 80% 75%

Monthly Number of arrears cases over £2000 (GN) 44 50

Quarterly Total amount of arrears written off cash value £600k £650k

Quarterly Former tenant rent arrears as a % of the total ARD (Total Debt) 1.50% 1.60%

Quarterly Number of referrals made to CAB (GN) TBC TBC

Quarterly Income received year to date (stepped quarterly) £212,000 £192,000

Quarterly

Customer satisfaction with overall facilities at JMC (comment 

card) – quarterly analysis 80.00% 75.00%

Quarterly

% of time JMC facilities utilised - based on x available hours per 

month? 60.00% 55.00%

Jim McDonald Centre

Business Excellence

Income and Home Ownership

Page 20



Your housing service 
has changed

Page 21



The review has allowed us to streamline 
the housing operations service, improve 
performance and enable us to deliver 
an efficient, high quality service to 
our customers. We want to further 
enhance our customer involvement, 
improve our neighbourhoods 
and deliver value for money.

The new teams have been set up to 
ensure that customers have easy access 
to the right services, receive efficient 
responses to enquiries and can expect 
effective management of any tenancy, 
leasehold or service issues. 

Some teams have been relocated to 
different offices. Please refer to the 
information below for the location of the 
teams and a summary of the services 
that the different teams manage.

A new Neighbourhood 
Team deals with:
• General housing matters regarding 

your council tenancy or leasehold (not 
repairs related)

• Changes or queries relating to 
your tenancy or lease – for example 
adding or removing someone 
from your tenancy, change in 
circumstances, etc.

• How to move home (choice 
based lettings, Homeswapper, 
or mutual exchange)

• Terminating a tenancy 
and moving out

• Breaches of tenancy, low level 
nuisance and neighbour issues.

• Estate/communal area/
garden queries

• Tenancy sustainment and support

• Community engagement 
and involvement

• Tenants Insurance scheme

Teams based at:
The Council Offices,  
The Campus,  
Welwyn Garden City, AL8 6AE

Neighbourhood Team Contact Details:
 01707 357796 
 neighbourhoods@welhat.gov.uk

A new ASB and Tenancy 
Enforcement Team deals with:
• Anti-social Behaviour

• Serious neighbour disputes/ 
tenancy enforcement

• Tenancy fraud

ASB Team Contact Details:
 01707 357706 
 asb@welhat.gov.uk

The Independent Living 
Team deals with:
• Supporting tenants to remain living 

independently in sheltered properties

• Managing the general provision of 
the council’s sheltered schemes across 
the borough

• The councils 24 hour emergency lifeline 
service for council and private residents

• The provision of the Welwyn Hatfield 
Community Bus Service

• The Shop Mobility service in the 
Howard Centre in Welwyn Garden City

Independent Living Team Contact Details:

 01707 357696 
 independentliving@welhat.gov.uk

Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council’s housing service 
has recently carried out a 
review of how we deliver 
the housing service to 
our customers and this 
has resulted in a number 
of positive changes and 
the creation of some new 
specialist teams. 

Important information about your housing service Teams based at:
Hatfield Housing Office, 
White Lion House, Hatfield, 
AL10 0JL

A new Income Management 
Team deals with:
• Managing rent collection for all 

council tenants rent accounts, 
including taking action to recover 
arrears through legal action

• All queries relating to rent issues 
(arrears and credits)

• Making a repayment arrangement to 
repay any rent arrears

• Rent arrears on former tenant accounts

• Rent arrears on garage accounts

• Advice on paying your rent, including 
setting up Direct Debits

• Support, if you have issues that are 
causing you difficulties with paying 
your rent

• Advice on what assistance is 
available to you through Housing 
Benefit and Universal Credit

Income Team Contact Details:
 01707 357088

Telephone payments line: 
01707 357000 (extension 4044)

 housingincome@welhat.gov.uk

P
age 22



A new Home Ownership 
Team deals with: 
• Leasehold account management 

– this includes service charges and 
major work costs

• Recovery of any charges due from 
leaseholders

• Managing Right to Buy applications 
and associated leasehold sale 
enquiries and processes

Home Ownership Team Contact Details:
 01707 357000
 homeownershipaccounts@welhat.gov.uk

57
28

/I
nc

om
e/

Au
g1

8/
W

E/
BD

ACCESS TO INFORMATION
We want our customers to be able to access information and services 
as easily as possible, in ways in which suit them. We can provide 
information in different formats or other help where this is needed. 
The type of help we can provide includes:

•  Translations into: 
•  Different languages 
•  Braille
•  Easy Read
•  Large print 

•  Audio 
• Accessible pdf documents 
• Telephone interpreting 
• Face-to-face interpreting 

(including sign language) 

Please contact your local Council Office, if you need help 
accessing any information about our services.

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE

 01707 357000
www.welhat.gov.uk

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Part I
Main author: Simon Kiff
Executive Member: Nick Pace
All Wards

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET HOUSING PANEL – 16 JANUARY 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES)

CHANGES TO HOUSING RENT STATEMENT PRODUCTION

1 Executive Summary

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the panel with an overview of the current 
process and to seek views on a new approach as to how the council’s new 
housing Income Team generate and mail out rent statements to council tenants. 

1.2 The new proposal aims to reduce the frequency of standard issue rent 
statements and to deliver a more efficient process without impacting the level of 
service received by council tenants.

1.3 The Income Management Team has recently carried out a costs benefit 
analysis review of the production process of council tenant rent statements.

1.4 The report sets out the two different options, the status quo and a proposed 
preferred alternative option for consideration. 

1.5 The review considered if the current way of issuing quarterly rent statements is 
efficient and cost effective, whilst still remaining compliant and without 
impacting the service provided or the tenants’ ability to access the up to date 
information. 

1.6 Approximately 24,000 rent statement (6,000 every quarter) are produced 
annually on a rolling weekly programme. Approximately 460 rent statements are 
sent every week.

1.7 The annual cost to the council to deliver the current rent statement production is 
£15,677. 

1.8 By changing the method and frequency of rent statement production, the cost of 
rent statement production could reduce to £7,207 per annum. This would 
generate an annual saving of £8,460 plus 65 officer hours.

1.9 Better use of officer time will allow for more proactive work to be targeted on 
mitigating the impact of Universal Credit.

1.10 The two options set out in this report followed consideration being given to a 
number of different identified options with the aim to drive both efficiency in 
officer time, operational costs and demonstrating value for money. 

1.11 Traditional access methods for requesting a rent account balances or a rent 
statement will still be available to tenants.

Page 25

Agenda Item 10



- 2 -

1.12 Changing how we deliver this service supports the council’s vision to offer a 
more modern, digital and accessible service aligned to the Customer Service 
Standard principles.  

1.13 This proposal is in line with other leading sector landlords who have reduced 
frequency of standard issue statements moving to a more digital and on-line 
approach.

2 Recommendation(s)

It is recommended that members:

a) Note the proposal to change the frequency of tenant rent statements from 
quarterly to once per year, issued at the end of the financial year and provide any 
views on this. 

b) Note the proposal to introduce an opt-out option of the paper service and provide 
any views on this.

3 Explanation

3.1 Rent statements are produced on a rolling quarterly programme, but processed 
weekly with every tenant receiving four rent statements per annum, each 
statement received quarterly. 

3.2 This equates to approximately 6000 statements being produced every 3 
months, 24,000 per annum.

3.3 For several years, Direct Debit (DD) payees (approximately 3000 in total) have 
been excluded from the rolling programme due to direct debits being collected 
in arrears and therefore the statements became confusing for these tenants. 

3.4 Of the total approximate 24,000 rent statements that are issued each year, this 
does not include rent statements being issued with every rent arrears letters or 
on request. As such, the true number of statements issued is far in excess of 
24,000.

3.5 A summary of the current rent statement production process carried out by 
Housing Transaction Officers is set out below:

 Housing Transaction Officer runs a report from Orchard identifying accounts 
due a rent statement.  

 Documents merged and converted to a word document and printed 
manually using local office printers.  

 Officer manually envelopes the rent statements and posts out.  

 This takes up to one and half hours each time, completed every Monday 
with approximately 460 statements being issued every Monday.  

3.6 The annual cost to the council to deliver the current rent statement production is 
£15,677. This is based on 6000 tenants receiving statements, excluding the 
approximate 3000 DD payers who currently do not receive a statement. 

Page 26



- 3 -

3.7 It takes a total of 65 hours of staff time per annum to produce and send out the 
24,000 rent statements. 

3.8 Changing the frequency of sending out rent statements to one paper statement 
per year will deliver efficiencies in both staff time and production costs. 

3.9 The costs of rent statement production for one issue per year would be £7,207.

3.10 This would generate an annual saving of £8,460 plus 65 officer hours.

3.11 The breakdown of current and proposed process costs for are shown at 
Appendix A.

3.12 Rent statements will continue to be sent with every arrears letter, in line with 
good practice and ensures compliance with pre-action protocol for court action. 

3.13 The Pre-Action Protocol for possession claims on rent arrears applies to 
residential possession applications by social landlords (such as local 
authorities). 

3.14 The Protocol sets out a code of good practice for social landlords and private 
registered providers in the collection of rent arrears. (See legal implications for 
an explanation).

3.15 Under the new arrangement, tenants would still be able to request a paper 
statement at any point throughout the year or access their account on-line at 
any time convenient to them.

3.16 Access to rent account balances or a request for a rent statement will still be 
available through the traditional methods to ensure that residents who don’t 
have access to on-line options are still able request the service.

3.17 It is proposed to complete a final quarterly rolling cycle of rent statements from 
January 2019 where we can also include a message to tenants about the 
changes to the frequency. This will also allow us to promote the online service 
and encourage signing up to the service. 

3.18 The first annual rent statement would therefore be sent out end of March 2019.

3.19 We want to introduce a more modern digital service model by offering an opt-
out option for residents who prefer to see their statement online rather than 
receiving a paper version. A process will be introduced to manage this 
operational service change.

3.20 Promotion of the council’s online service ‘See my Data’ would be delivered to 
supplement the changes and encourage more tenants to register for the 
service. This allows tenants to view their rent statements 24/7 online. This 
system is updated daily with new transactions.

3.21 There is no additional costs to the council should the usage of ‘See my Data’ 
increase. 

3.22 We currently have 557 active accounts registered to use ‘See my Data’. 

3.23 Rent statements online are viewed, on average 265 times per month.

Page 27



- 4 -

3.24 For every 1000 resident tenants that opt-out and view their statement online, a 
further saving of £660 per annum would be realised.

Implications

4 Legal Implication(s)

4.1 Pre-Action Protocol (part of the Civil Procedure Rules) applies to residential 
possession claims by social landlords (such as local authorities, Registered 
Social Landlords and Housing Action Trusts) and private registered providers of 
social housing. Part 2 relates to claims which are based solely on claims for 
rent arrears. The protocol does not apply to claims in respect of long leases or 
to claims for possession where there is no security of tenure.

4.2 Compliance with Pre Action Protocol will still be achieved as rent statements 
will be sent with every arrears letter/stage. Residents will also have access 
online via ‘See my Data’ which can be viewed 24/7.

5 Financial Implication(s)

5.1 The costs and savings for the proposed option is detailed in the report. Any 
savings realised would be realised in the Housing Revenue Account (HRA).

5.2 The costs at this point are estimated based on an initial quote received, but 
where required, a formal contract or service level agreement would set out the 
costs associated with delivering this function.

6 Risk Management Implications

6.1 There are minimal reputational risks associated with the proposed changes, 
some tenants may be resistant to the change. This will initially be managed by a 
promotion and communication strategy using letters and standard resident 
communication channels.

6.2 Initial enquiries from tenants will allow for direct promotion of the online service.

6.3 This will be further mitigated by still providing ad-hoc statements on request and 
tenants being able to register and use our online service.

7 Security & Terrorism Implication(s)

7.1 None directly arising from this report.

8 Procurement Implication(s)

8.1 There are no procurement implications as the existing print supplier (BD Print) 
would continue to be used. They have an existing contract in place for the next 
three years.

9 Climate Change Implication(s)

9.1 None directly arising from this report.

10 Human Resource Implication(s)

10.1 None directly arising from this report.

Page 28



- 5 -

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s)

11.1 None directly arising from this report.

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s)

12.1 Information relating to changes to this service will be shared in relevant 
publications, on-going letters and rent statement mail-outs, through direct 
contact with tenants and within a new set of operational service standards 
document, currently in development. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to 2 of the 5 Council Corporate Priorities: 

1) Our Housing

2) Our Council

14 Equality and Diversity

14.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has been carried out in connection with 
the proposals that are set out in this report.  

14.2 One possible negative has been identified that could impact our older residents 
based on the assumption that some may not be IT literate or have online 
access. Paper rent statements are still being issued and more of our over 65 
residents will receive a paper statement who currently don’t receive one due to 
their method of rent payment currently being Direct Debit.

Name of author Simon Kiff
Title Income and Home Ownership Manager
Date 29 November 2018

Page 29



- 6 -

APPENDIX A

New Process Costs 
(Annually)

              Staff Hourly Rate: £13.00

Officer Cost
Officer time 

(Hours) Cost
IT 0.50 £7.00

Printing 0.00 £0.00
Total Cost (per annum) 0.50 £7.00

Printers Cost
Per letter 
(pence)

1 Per year
(9000)

Printing & Envelopes £0.22 £1,980
Postage £0.58 £5,220

Total Cost (per annum) £0.80 £7,200
TOTAL ANNUAL COSTS £7,207

Current Process Costs 
(Weekly)

               Staff Hourly Rate: £13.00

 

Officer Cost
Officer time 

(Hours) Cost
IT 0.08 £1.08

Printing 1.17 £15.17
Total (weekly) 1.25 £16.25

Total (per annum) 65 £845

Stationary Cost
Per letter 
(pence) Per 6000 tenants

Paper £0.016 £96
Envelope £0.020 £120
Printing £0.002 £12
Postage £0.580 £3,480

Total Cost (per quarter) £0.618 £3,708
Total Cost (per annum) £2.47 £14,832

TOTAL ANNUAL COSTS £15,667

Page 30



- 1 -

Part I
Main author: Sian Chambers
Executive Member: Nick Pace
All Wards

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET HOUSING PANEL16 JANUARY 2019

TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION PROVISION UPDATE

1 Executive Summary

1.1 This report outlines the current position in relation to the use of temporary 
accommodation for homeless families and the use of bed and breakfast 
accommodation.

1.2 It sets out the measures we are taking to address the current and future demand.  
This includes how we plan to make provision during the period that Howlands 
House (currently our main temporary accommodation site) is being redeveloped.

1.3 There is an opportunity to make use of a decanted sheltered housing block 
(Minster House) for temporary accommodation – during a time when the block 
would otherwise be empty.  The occupation charges will be sufficient to cover the 
costs associated with making the block suitable for use as temporary 
accommodation – plus this should help alleviate the need for bed and breakfast 
accommodation.

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 Members to note the plans underway to ensure adequate provision of temporary 
accommodation, including the acquisition of Inspira House, Welwyn Garden City 
and the development of private sector leasing.

2.2 Members to recommend to Cabinet the interim use of Minster House, Hatfield for 
temporary accommodation – once the block is fully vacated.

3 Explanation

3.1 Historically the council has managed homelessness demand for interim and 
temporary accommodation through its own stock of temporary accommodation 
and specialist provision, such as Women’s refuge.

3.2 The council has two main temporary accommodation sites – Howlands House, 
Welwyn Garden City, which provides 21 shared three bedroom units (a maximum 
of 63 individual units) and Hazelgrove House, Hatfield, which is a block of 20 
self-contained flats (mainly one bedroom, with one two bedroom property).  

3.3 This accommodation has been supplemented with the occasional use of bed and 
breakfast or supported housing for individuals who present challenges that 
cannot be managed within these settings (such as sexual or violent offences)

3.4 Over the last eighteen months we have experienced an increase in the demand 
for temporary accommodation and have seen a reduction in move on options, 
which means that both the occupancy levels and average level of stay (for all 
occupiers) in temporary accommodation has risen.  The average stay was 
previously 14.5 weeks, but by March 2018 was 16.5 weeks.  

Page 31

Agenda Item 11



- 2 -

3.5 In April 2017 the council was providing 71 households with temporary 
accommodation, which was a very similar level to the previous year (April 2016).  
However by March 2018 this number had risen to 100 households (an increase 
of 54%), which was the highest reported number since April 2014.   

3.6 The introduction of the Homeless Reduction Act in April 2018, which extended 
the council’s duties to homeless households, created some additional pressure 
due to the enhanced duties, including the length of time a duty is owed and 
therefore how long the council is expected to accommodate households.

3.7 The number of households in temporary accommodation peaked at 120 in July 
2018 and has varied between 111 and 117 on a weekly basis since then.  
However due to the sustained efforts of the team, at the time of writing we have 
reduced this number to 98 households in temporary accommodation.

3.8 The higher demand has led to the reliance on bed and breakfast which is both 
expensive and less suitable for the families who are placed there. We have a 
number of options that are being explored to expand the suite of temporary 
accommodation and longer term housing options available to the council, to 
reduce and hopefully remove the need for bed and breakfast accommodation – 
other than by exception. 

3.9 This includes exploring private sector leasing options, bringing some vacant 
general fund council properties into use where this is appropriate, making use of 
Housing Revenue Account housing stock as temporary accommodation and 
considering suitable sites for acquisition.  We have also been exploring 
alternative types of provision, such as the use of temporary modular housing on 
vacant development sites.

3.10 In the longer term we have plans to demolish and rebuild our main temporary 
accommodation site - Howlands House.  The objective is to both increase the 
number of units on this site and to provide a modern offer, as the current 
buildings are outdated and all facilities are shared.

3.11 We have also recently consulted with residents of a sheltered housing block 
(Burfield Close, Hatfield) about decanting them from this block, with a view to 
demolition and re-provision of purpose built temporary accommodation at that 
site.  A recent viability assessment found that Burfield Close is in need for 
complete re-development because the current provision is not suitable for 
meeting the needs of our older population in the future, with very small properties 
which need updating and the building having no lifts.

3.12 We need to ensure that we both increase our stock of temporary accommodation 
to meet the current need now, but also with a view to having sufficient 
accommodation available to meet a growing demand and whilst we are 
redeveloping Howlands House.

3.13 Increasing temporary accommodation in the short term

Use of non-secure tenancies

3.14 Since the pressure to secure temporary accommodation has increased, we have 
been using an increasing number of units of our housing stock to provide 
temporary accommodation.  In these circumstances properties are let on a non-
secure (temporary) tenancy.

Page 32



- 3 -

3.15 We usually use this type of accommodation for families who need self-contained 
accommodation and/or larger households who would otherwise require a number 
of units within our temporary accommodation site.

3.16 Whilst this is a helpful way to avoid the use of B&B, it does mean that units of 
housing stock are used for temporary accommodation, rather than as permanent 
solutions for people on our waiting list.

3.17 However there are some properties in our stock which are more suited for this 
type of use, for example we have some studio flats which are particularly small 
and are ideal for temporary accommodation, but not as a longer term housing 
option.  We also have some properties that we are considering for 
redevelopment, so it is sensible to occupy them on a temporary basis whilst this 
is being considered.

Use of Minster House, Hatfield

3.18 Cabinet approved the disposal and redevelopment of Minster House, a sheltered 
housing scheme which comprises 30 flats, in 2017 and as a result the block is 
currently being decanted.  

3.19 Cabinet has also recently agreed a proposal to include the adjacent bungalows in 
the wider redevelopment.  There are eleven bungalows, two are vacant.  We 
have started the process of decanting these residents, but this is likely to take 
around twelve months.  The Scheme Coordinator will have an office base in the 
vacant bungalow to support the bungalow residents throughout this process.

3.20 A project group has met on site to assess the suitability of using the main Minster 
House block for temporary accommodation.  A plan has been agreed, which 
includes securing the communal space and carrying out repairs and 
decorations/furnishing the vacant units.

3.21 The Housing Development team have confirmed that Minster House (main block) 
is likely to be empty for at least a year (post full decant) whilst they finalise plans, 
seek planning approval and appoint a contractor to carry out the development.  
This report seeks authority to convert the use of the block to temporary 
accommodation during this period. The cost of the refurbishment works will be 
almost entirely offset by the increased revenue from the temporary 
accommodation once it is occupied.  It should be noted that temporary 
accommodation attracts a higher rental income than general needs housing.

Purchase of Inspira House, Welwyn Garden City

3.22 The council has recently exchanged contracts in advance of completing on the 
purchase of Inspira House.  This block is an ‘office to residential’ conversion, 
providing 54 units of accommodation.  

3.23 This will be used to provide temporary accommodation, primarily bridging the gap 
that will be left when Howlands House is decanted; we estimate that we will have 
51 units occupied at any given time – allowing for change of occupation and 
repairs.

3.24 The proposal is to use this block as temporary accommodation for approximately 
three years, after which time we hope to have redeveloped Howlands House and 
so can consider alternative options for the block, such as intermediate rent.

Page 33



- 4 -

Development of Private Sector Leasing Options

3.25 Officers are in discussion with four potential providers of private sector leasing 
models.  In this model, the provider leases properties direct from private 
landlords at a fixed fee and will either manage the properties fully or offer a 
partially managed service to the council; we will nominate families to the 
properties.  This can be used for temporary accommodation or to fully discharge 
our duty to homeless families.

3.26 The council would pay a fee – either a lump sum or a weekly charge – depending 
on the nature of the scheme.  A separate report will be brought setting out the 
options and making a recommendation on how to proceed.  

Use of other decanted blocks

3.27 Officers have recently consulted with residents of Burfield Close, a sheltered 
housing scheme, with a view to vacating the block and redeveloping it to provide 
purpose built temporary accommodation.  At the moment the proposal is to 
provide around 40 units of temporary accommodation on this site.

3.28 Subject to the outcome of the consultation and Cabinet approval, we would hope 
to use the fully vacated block as temporary accommodation in a similar way to 
Minster House – whilst the plans are being progressed to redevelop the site in 
the longer term.  There are 25 units on site and we would expect that at any 
given time we would occupy 23 units – allowing for void turnover and repairs.

3.29 It is likely to take around one year to decant the block and therefore this site 
would not be available to be used for temporary accommodation until early 2020.

3.30 We are also exploring the options/potential to provide modular housing on a 
temporary basis, where a suitable site is identified.

Increasing temporary accommodation in the long term

New temporary accommodation developments

3.31 In the longer term we plan to redevelop Howlands House to provide around 80 
units of temporary accommodation.  This will include some units which are fully 
adapted to meet the needs of households with disabilities.

3.32 Similarly, we hope to redevelop Burfield Close, which will provide a purpose built 
block of around 40 units of temporary accommodation in Hatfield.

Specialist Accommodation

3.33 As well as council managed and commissioned temporary accommodation, we 
are working in partnership with other statutory and voluntary organisations to 
improve the provision on specialist and supported accommodation.

3.34 We were party to a bid for government funding to help set up a specialist 
Women’s Refuge in Hertfordshire which will cater for women victims of domestic 
abuse who are at risk of suicide and/or who have drug and alcohol issues.  We 
have recently heard that this bid was successful and therefore will be involved in 
discussions with Herts County Council and the service provider, SaferPlaces, to 
take this project forward.

Page 34



- 5 -

3.35 We have agreed funding to help support the development of a Night Shelter in 
Hatfield and have recently submitted a bid to government to secure additional 
funding for this project, as well as funding toward specialist ‘Navigator’ posts who 
will be responsible for helping to secure long term solutions for people who have 
a history of rough sleeping.

3.36 We have set up a Housing First project, which includes the provision of a four 
bedroom supported house, which is managed by DrugLink.  We are liaising with 
DrugLink about the potential to further extend this provision, so that there is more 
supported housing available for this client group.

Implications

Legal Implication(s)

3.37 The council has a statutory responsibility under the Homeless Reduction Act 
2017 to prevent and relieve homelessness, including the provision of suitable 
accommodation for people who are homeless and in priority need.

3.38 Priority need includes people with dependent children who live with them, 
someone who is pregnant or vulnerable due to age or health or for some other 
reason.

3.39 The Homeless Reduction Act has extended the council’s duties to homeless 
people, which has led to a large increase in the case load being dealt with by 
housing options staff and an increase in the average length of time spent in 
temporary accommodation.

4 Financial Implication(s)

4.1 The cost of bed and breakfast accommodation up to the end of Period Seven 
(18/19) is 97k; the cost of income recovered via benefits during the same period 
is 40k so the net cost is 57k.  The total estimated net spend for this financial year 
is £98k.

4.2 The estimated income from using Minster House as temporary accommodation, 
based on an 80% occupancy rate, is approximately £179k per annum.  Taking 
into account the set up costs (decorations, security, and furniture) and estimated 
rental income during the period of occupation, the net cost of using Minster 
House for temporary accommodation is less than £10,000. 

5 Risk Management Implications

5.1 The risks related to this proposal are set out below.  The residual risk score is 
taking account of the recommendations in the report being agreed:

Legal Risk

5.2 The council may not be able to demonstrate that it is meeting its legal duties to 
both prevent and relieve homelessness and to provide suitable accommodation.  
It is important that there is a range of good quality temporary accommodation 
provided locally, as this minimises the risk of having to place families outside the 
local area.  Likelihood High; Impact Medium.  Residual risk score Likelihood 
Low; Impact Medium.

Page 35



- 6 -

5.3 The council is in breach of legislation if it places a pregnant woman or a family 
with children in bed and breakfast for more than six weeks – therefore it is 
essential that we have a sufficient supply of other forms of suitable temporary 
accommodation locally. Likelihood Medium; Impact High.  Residual risk score 
Likelihood Low; Impact High.

Financial Risk

5.4 The cost of using bed and breakfast is high and the amount that can be 
recovered via the benefit system does not meet the costs.  Increasing local 
provision will reduce the requirement for bed and breakfast and the rental income 
can be used to meet the costs of running the local temporary accommodation.  
Likelihood High; Impact High.  Residual risk score Likelihood Low; Impact High.

Reputational Risk

5.5 Using bed and breakfast accommodation and/or accommodation located outside 
the borough is highly undesirable and it is very difficult for families with 
employment and or children at school, who are sometimes located away from 
their support network or away from jobs and schools.  The nature of bed and 
breakfast and the facilities provided are challenging for families, particularly if this 
is for more than a few weeks.  Likelihood High; Impact High.  Residual risk 
score Likelihood Low; Impact High.

5.6 If we do not make use of Minster House, there may be some reputational risk 
associated with leaving a building of this size empty for approximately a year, 
whilst we have people who are homeless and sometimes accommodated outside 
of the local area.  Likelihood Medium; Impact Medium.  Residual risk score 
Likelihood V Low; Impact Medium.

5.7 Bringing Minster House into use as temporary accommodation may create some 
concern from the residents of the bungalows (prior to them being decanted) and 
other properties nearby.  There will be a clear communication plan associated 
with the project which will help to mitigate this risk.  Likelihood Medium; Impact 
Medium.  Residual risk score Likelihood Low; Impact Medium. 

6 Security and Terrorism Implication(s)

6.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising from this report.

7 Procurement Implication(s)

7.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report.

8 Climate Change Implication(s)

8.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report

9 Human Resources Implication(s)

9.1 The staffing resources have been reviewed as part of the strategic approach, to 
ensure that there is sufficient capacity to adequately manage the council’s 
temporary accommodation sites.

Page 36



- 7 -

10 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s)

10.1 It is an established fact that homelessness is a negative determinant of positive 
health outcomes.  The council’s priority is to prevent homelessness as far as 
possible and to provide sufficient affordable homes to meet need; however where 
this is not possible, it is important that we are able to meet the needs of 
homeless households with good quality and local temporary accommodation.  

11 Communication and Engagement Implication(s)

11.1 A communication plan will be agreed regarding the use of Minster House as 
temporary accommodation.  It is particularly important to convey that this will not 
lead to any delay in the longer term redevelopment plan for this site and that this 
is a temporary measure.

12 Link to Corporate Priorities

12.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Our 
Housing, and specifically to the achievement of ‘Plan for current and future 
housing need’ and is linked to a statutory requirement, under Housing Act 1996 
(as amended) and Homeless Reduction Act 2018.

13 Equality and Diversity

13.1 An Equality Impact Assessment will be completed on all projects linked to this 
report as part of the assessment and development of the projects. 

Name of author (Sian Chambers, Ext 2640)
Title (Head of Community and Housing Strategy)
Date (28 December 2018)

Background papers to be listed (if applicable)  

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET HOUSING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

DATE OF 
MEETING 

REPORTS REPORT AUTHORS
SERVICE AREAS

16 January 2019  Housing Operations Transformation Programme Update
 Presentation on Independent Living

 Rent Statement Process Review

 Temporary Accommodation Update 

 Queensway House Update

Stuart Pearson
Stuart Pearson
 
Stuart Pearson

Sian Chamber

Peter Grey

11 March 2019  Affordable Housing Delivery - Review Of Strategic Approach – Update 
On The Housing Company 

 Quarter 3 KPIs 2018/19

Simone Russell

All/Lucy Aston

June 2019

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 ACTIONS UPDATE
	8 HOUSING OPERATIONS TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME UPDATE
	8a - Housing ops Structure Chart - December 2018 Appendix 1
	Appendix 1 - Structure Chart - December 2018.vsdx
	Neighbourhoods
	Income
	Business Excellence
	Independent Living
	JMC


	8b - Housing OPs Performance Metrics Appendix 2
	8c - Housing Operations Service Changes Leaflet Appendix 3

	10 CHANGES TO HOUSING RENT STATEMENT PRODUCTION
	11 TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION PROVISION UPDATE
	13 WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

